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28 lithrough Third Causes of Action, allege as follows against Defendant Moss Bros,, Inc.
27

(hereinafter “Moss Bros.”), on information and belief, formed after an inguiry

reasonable under the circumstances:
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INTRODUCTION

2. Plaintiff Leticia Gama is one of hundreds of customers who purchased a
vehicle from Defendant Moss Bros., a large automobile dealership in San Bernardino,
California, pursuant to a Retail Installment Sale Contract (“RISC”). The form RISC
used by Moss Bros. gives the dealership a ten-day window to assign the contract to a
financial institution or cancel the deal. Moss Bros. sent Ms. Gama a “Notice of Non-
Assignment of Contract” (the “Notice”). The Notice does not cancel or rescind the RISC.
After Moss Bros.’s ten-day window to cancel expired, Moss Bros. contacted Ms. Gama
and informed her that it was exercising its right to cancel the deal. Moss Bros.
threatened to repossess Ms. Gama’s vehicle in breach of her RISC if she did not return
the vehicle.

3. Moss Bros. violated state consumer protection laws by sending the Notice and
threatening to repossess Ms. Gama’s vehicle. Ms. Gama seeks a declaration that she
has an enforceable contract with Moss Bros. to prevent it from illegally breaching the
RISC and repossessing the vehicle. Ms. Gama seeks this relief on behalf of herself and
all other similarly-situated consumers of Moss Bros.

4, The conduct herein described violates, inter olia, the Consumers Legal
Remedies Act (“CLRA”) (Civil Code §1750, et seq.), and the Unfair Competition Law
(“UCL”) (Bus. & Prof. Code §17200, et seq.). Further, the illegal use of the Notice and
threats to repossess vehicles is a procedure and/or practice followed by Moss Bros.
Thus, class relief and an action on behalf of the general public are appropriate to
remedy such practices.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

5. This Court has jurisdiction over all causes of action asserted herein pursuant
to the California Constitution, Article VI, Section 10, because this case is a cause not
given by statute to other trial courts.
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6. This Court has jurisdiction over Defendants because each are individuals,
assoclations, or corporations that are either authorized to conduct or, in fact, do conduct
substantial business in the State of California, County of San Bernardino.

1. Venue is proper in this County because the transactions at issue in this
lawsﬁit all occurred in this County.

PARTIES
8. Plaintiff Leticia Gama is an individual residing in the City of San

Bernardino, County of San Bernardino, State of California.

9. Defendant Moss Bros., Inc. is a California corporation, doing business in the
City of San Bernardino, County of San Bernardiﬁo, State of California.

10.  Plaintiff does not know the true names and capacities, whether corporate,
partnership, associate, individual, or otherwise of Defendants sued herein as Does 1
through 10, inclusive, under the provisions of Section 474 of the California Code of Civil
Procedure. Defendants Does 1 through 10, inclusive, are in some manner responsible
for the acts, occurrences, and transactions set forth herein, and are legally liable to
Plaintiff, all others similarly-situated, and the general public. Plaintiff will set forth
the true names and capacities of the fictitiously-named Defendants together with
appropriate charging allegations when ascertained.

11. All acts of corporate employees as alleged were authorized or ratified by an
officer, director, or managing agent of the corporate employer.

12.  Each Defendant, whether actually or fictitiously-named herein, was the
principal, agent (actual or ostensible), or employee of each other Defendant and in
acting as such principal or within the course and scope of such employment or agency,
took some part in the acts and omissions hereinafter set forth by reason of which each
Defendant is liable to Plaintiffs for the relief prayed for herein.
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CLASS ALLEGATIONS

13.  This action is brought, and may properly be maintained, as a class action
pursuant to provisions of the California Code of Civil Procedure Section 382 and Civil
Code Section 1781(a).

14.  Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of herself and all others similarly-
situated as a representative member of the following proposed class: “All persons who,
since June 16, 2008, (a) purchased a vehicle from Moss Bros. for personal use pursuant
to a retail installment sale contract; (b) on a later date received a “Notification of Non-
assignment of Contract” letter; and (c) who were not notified within ten days of the
execution of their purchase contract that Moss Bros. was exercising its contractual right
of rescission by some form of notice other than the Notification of Non-assignment of
Contract letter (the “Class”).

15.  Inthis lawsuit, Plaintiff and the Class seek both equitable relief, including
declaratory, injunctive, restitutionary, and other equitable monetary relief and
economic and statutory damages as set forth more fully below, including, but not
limited to, a declaration that they have an enforceable purchase contract with Moss
Bros. and Moss Bros. is not contractually able to repossess their vehicle.

16.  Specifically excluded from the proposed Class are the Court and its staff,
Defendants, any entity in which any of the Defendants has a controlling interest, and
the officers, directors, affiliates, legal representatives, heirs, successors, subsidiaries,
and/or assigns of any such individual or entity.

A. NUMEROSITY OF THE CLASS

17.  The proposed Class is so numerous that the individual joinder of the Class
Members in one action is impracticable. The exact number and the identities of the
Members of the Class are unknown at this time and can only be ascertained through
appropriate investigation and discovery of Defendants’ records.
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B. EXISTENCE AND PREDOMINANCE OF COMMON QUESTIONS OF
LAW AND FACT

18. Common questions of law and fact arising out of the claims here at issue exist

as to all Members of the Class and predominate over any individual issue. These
common legal and factual questions include, but are not limited to, the following:

a. Whether Moss Bros.’s practice of sending a Notification of Non-assignment
of Contract was a contractual exercise of its right to rescind and whether
such conduct violates California’s consumer protection statutes including,
inter alia, the CLRA, the ASFA, and/or UCL.

b. The amount of revenues and profits Moss Bros. received, and/or the amount
of monies or other obligations imposed on, or lost by, Class Members as a
result of such wrongdoing.

c. Whether Class Members are threatened with irreparable harm and are
entitled to injunctive and other equitable relief and, if so, what is the nature
of such relief.

d. Whether Class Members are entitled to payment of actual, incidental,
consequential, exemplary, punitive, and/or statutory damages plus interest
thereon, and if so, what is the nature of such relief.

C. TYPICALITY OF CLAIMS

19. In regards to Members of the Class, Moss Bros. engaged in the standard

practice of having customers sign Retail Installment Sale Contracts, sending the
customer a Notification of Non-assignment of Contract letter, continuing to attempt to
secure financing after sending the Notification, and, more than 10 days after execution
of the Retail Installment Sale Contracts, informing the Class Members that they either
had to sign a new contract or return the vehicle.

20. Plaintiff and each Member of the Class received a Notification of Non-

assignment of Contract letter and was subsequently told they either had to sign a new

contract and/or return the vehicle.
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21.  Accordingly, Plaintiff's claims are typical of the claims of Members of the
Class. -

D. ADEQUATE REPRESENTATION

22.  Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Members of
the Class in that she does not have irreconcilable conflicts with or interests materially
antagonistic to those of other Class Members.

23. Plaintiff has retained attorneys experienced in the prosecution of class
actions, including consumer class éctions.

E. SUPERIORITY AND SUBSTANTIAL BENEFITS OF CLASS

LITIGATION

24.  To the extent it is an element for establishing class certification for certain
causes of action, a class action is superior to other available methods for the fair and
efficient group-wide adjudication of this controversy and, as applicable, possesses
substantial benefits. Individual joinder of all Class Members is impracticable, and no
other group method of adjudication of all claims asserted herein is more efficient and
manageable while at the same time provides all the remedies available to ensure the
full purpose of this State’s consumer protection laws are effectuated. Furthermore, as
the damages suffered by each individual Class Member may be relatively small ahd the
relief sought discrete, the expense and burden of individual Class Members to redress
the wrongs done to them, and the cost to the court system of adjudicating such litigation
on an individual basis, would be substantial. The Class Members, because of the
amounts at stake, would have little interest in individually controlling the prosecution
of separate actions; to counsel’s knowledge there has not been any substantial litigation
concerning this controversy commenced against the parties. It is not anficipated that
there will be any difficulties in the management of this litigation due to the focus of the
wrongdoing on Moss Bros.’s conduct and its knowledge of the true facts. Individualized
litigation would also present the potential for varying, inconsistent, or contradictory

judgments and would magnify the delay and expenses of all parties and the court
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system resulting from multiple trials asserting the same factual issues. The conduct
of this action as a class action presents fewer management difficulties, conserves the
resources of the parties and the court system, and protects the rights of each Class
Member as compared to other methods for the group-wide adjudication of this
controversy. Thus, the Class and the court system achieve substantial benefits by the
prosecution of this action on a class-wide basis by avoiding the burden of multiple
litigation involvingidentical claims, as well as by aiding legitimate business enterprises
in curtailing illegitimate competition and ensuring a therapeutic effect on those
companies such as Moss Bros. that indulge in fraudulent practices.

25.  Notice of the pendency of any resolution of this action can be provided fo the
Class Members by publication and/or individual mailed notice, as appropriate under
California law, and the costs of such notice are properly imposed on Moss Bros.

26. This action is also properly certified to proceed on a class-wide basis because:

a. The prosecution of separate actions by the individual Class Members would
create a risk of inconsistent or varying adjudications with respect to
individual Class Members, thus establishing incompatible standards of
conduct for Moss Bros.

b. Because of the nature of the relief sought, the prosecution of separate actions
by individual Class Members would create a risk of adjudication with respect
to them that would, as a practical matter, be dispositive of the interests of
the other Class Members not parties to such adjudications or would
substantially impair or impede the ability of such Class Members to protect
their interests.

C. Moss Bros. has acted or refuses to act in respects generally applicable to the
Class, thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief with regard to the
Class Members as a whole in terms of the equitable relief sought.

/11
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SUMMARY OF FACTS COMMON TO THE CLASS

27. During the class period, it was Moss Bros.’s practice and/or policy to use
retail installment sale contracts that gave it a ten-day right of rescission. If Moss Bros.
was unable to assign the contract within ten days of execution, Moss Bros. would send
the customer a Notification of Non-assignment of Contract. The Notification does not
rescind the underlying contract. Moss Bros. would then continue to attempt to assign
the contract.

28.  If Moss Bros. could locate an assignee on different terms, Moss Bros. would
inform the Class Member that they needed to sign a new contract to purchase the
vehicle. If Moss Bros. was unable to locate an assignee, Moss Bros. would demand the
customer return the vehicle or it would threaten to repossess the vehicle.

29. Each Class Member purchased a vehicle from Moss Bros. for personal use.
Each Class Member executed a purchase contract with Moss Bros. that gave Moss Bros.
a ten-day right of rescission. Each Class Member received a Notification of Non-
assignment of Contract letter. Each Class Member was either subsequently told they
had to sign a new contract and/or that the vehicle needed to be returned or it would be
repossessed.

SUMMARY OF FACTS RELATIVE TO
MS. GAMA’S VEHICLE PURCHASE

30. On October 7, 2009, Ms. Gama went to Moss Bros. and agreed to purchase
a used 2008 Chrysler Sebring, VIN 1C3LC56R48N226262 (the “Vehicle™).

31. During the negotiations, Ms. Gama was told that she had to purchase a GAP

ficontract. Ms. Gama did not want to purchase a GAP contract, but believed the

representation of the finance manager that she had to do so in order to purchase the
vehicle.

32. Moss Bros. prepared a Retail Installment Sale Contract for Ms. Gama by
which she could purchase the Vehicle. The contract included a $750 charge for a GAP

Contract. A true and correct copy of the contract is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.
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33. Aspartofthe transaction, Ms. Gama traded in a 2002 Nissan Altima. At the
time of the transaction, Ms. Gama owed approximately $2,000 to Loanmart for the
Nissan Altima.

34. The contract gave Moss Bros. the right to cancel the contract if it could not
assign Ms. Gama’s contract within ten days.

35. OnOctober 8, 2009, Moss Bros. contacted Ms. Gama’s husband and informed
him that the payoff on Ms. Gama’s trade-in exceeded the $2,000 set forth on her
contract, and that she would be responsible for paying the difference to Loanmart.

36. On October 12, 2009, Moss Bros. sent Ms. Gama a Notification of Non-
assignment of Contract lettex. The letter does not rescind the contract, and states that
Moss Bros. will continue to attempt to obtain financing. Ms. Gama received the letter
on or about October 16, 2009. A true and correct copy of the Notification is attached
hereto as Exhibit 2. 7

37. At no point prior to October 17, 2009, did Moss Bros. exercise its contractual
right to cancel Ms. Gama’s contract.

38.  On October 28, 2009, Moss Bros. contacted Ms. Gama and informed her that
it was exercising its right to cancel the contract. Moss Bros. threatened to reposséss the
vehicle if Ms. Gama did not surrender it to Moss Bros. The person from Moss Bros.
identified himself as “Sam.”

39. As of October 31, 2009, Moss Bros. had not paid off Ms. Gama’s loan with
Loanmart for the Altima.

40. On Sunday, November 1, 2009, “Sam” left Ms. Gama a voice-mail message
that if she did not return the vehicle then Moss Bros. would repossess it.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation of Consumers Legal Remedies Act, Civil Code Section 1750 et seq.
- Class Claim
117
/117
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41.  Plaintiff, on her own behalfand on behalfof the Class Members, incorporates
by reference each and every allegation set forth in Paragraphs 1-40, inclusive, of this
Complaint and further alleges as follows.

42,  The vehicles purchased by Ms. Gama and the Class Kia Forte constitutes re
“goods” bought for use primarily for personal, family, or household purposes pursuant
to Civil Code §1761(a).

43.  Plaintiff and the members of the Class are “consumer” pursuant to Civil Code
§1761(d).

44. Moss Bros. is a “person” pursuant to Civil Code §1761(c).

45. The advertisement and sale of the vehicles to Plaintiff and the Class are
“transactions” pursuant to Civil Code §1761(e).

46. Pursuant to the CLRA, the following unfair methods of competition and
unfair or deceptive acts or practices are prohibited: misrepresenting the source,
sponsorship, approval, or certification of goods or services; misrepresenting the
affiliation, connection, or association with, or certification by, another; representing that
goods or services have sponsorship, approval, characteristics, ingredients, uses, benefits,
or quantities which they do not have or that a person has a sponsorship, approval,
étatus, affiliation, or connection which he or she does not have; advertising goods or
services with intent not to sell them as advertised; representing that a transaction
confers or involves rights, remedies, or obligations which it does not have or involve, or
which are prohibited by law; and representing that the subject of a transaction has been
supplied in accordance with a previous representation when it has not.

47.  Moss Bros. violated the CLRA by, at a minimum: (1) attempting to cancel the
subject RISC based on an alleged failure to obtain financing after more than 10 days
had expired from the date of purchase; (2) threatening to repossess the Vehicle;
(3) failing to make required disclosures, harassing, lying and/or violating fair debt
collection laws; (4) failing to comply with DMV regulations regarding registration and

titling; and (5) failing to pay off trade-in vehicles.
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48. Plaintiff served Defendants via certified mail, U.S. Mail, and facsimile a
Consumers Legal Remedies Act notification and demand letter on November 3, 2009,

49. - The Consumers Legal Remedies Act provides that a complaint for violation
of the Consumers Legal Remedies Act may be amended without leave of court to seek
damages should the violations not be remedied within thirty (30) days of notification.
Plaintiff will add a claim for actual and punitive damages, for the oppressive,
fraudulent, or malicious acts of Moss Bros., and statutory damages under the
Consumers Legal Remedies Act for violation of Civil Code §1770 if a full and complete
response to this letter is not timely received on behalf of Plaintiff. At this‘ time,
equitable and injunctive relief are sought only under this cause of action. No claim for
damages is made under this cause of action at this time.

50. Civil Code §1780(a)(2) of the CLRA provides that a consumer is entitled to
an injunction prohibiting acts or practices which violate it. Plaintiff seeks an order
enjoining Moss Bros. from the acts identified above.

51. Under Civil Code §§1780(a)(2), (3), and (5), Plaintiff seeks an order from the
Court finding that the RISC between Plaintiff and Moss Bros. is enforceable as written
and cannot be cancelled by Moss Bros. pursuant to its contractual right of rescission,
and that Moss Bros. must comply with the terms of the RISC.

52. Pursuant to Civil Code §1780(d), Plaintiff may also recover attorney’s fees
and costs according to proof at time of trial.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
Declaratory Relief- Class Claim

53. Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and the Class, re-alleges and incorporates
herein each and every allegation set forth in Paragraphs 1 through 52 of the Complaint,
as though fully set forth herein.

54. A controversy has arisen between Plaintiff, the members of the Class, and
Moss Bros. regarding the rights and responsibilities of the parties under their retail

installment sale contracts.
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55. Moss Bros. has taken the position it may repossess Plaintiff's vehicle, and
those of Class members, seek costs and expenses, and/or a deficiency balance against
Plaintiff and the members of the Class.

56. Plaintiff and the members of the Class contend they have enforceable
contracts, that Moss Bros. did not timely execute its right to cancel the contracts, that
Plaintiff and the members of the Class can keep their vehicles and make their monthly
payments directly to Moss Bros. or whoever Moss Bros. assigns their contracts to, that
Moss Bros. must pay of trade balances listed on contracts, and that Moss Bros. must
register and properly title the vehicles of Plaintiff and the members of the Class.

57.  Plaintiff's position includes the facts set forth above.

58. Plaintiff and the Class further seek attorney’s fees and costs under Code of
Civil Procedure §1021.5 and Civil Code § 2983.4.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation of the Unlawful, Unfair or Fraudulent Business Acts and
Practices - Violation of Bus. & Prof. Code §17200, et seq.

59. Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and the Class, re-alleges and incorporates
herein each and every allegation set forth in Paragraphs 1 through 58 of the Complaint,
as though fully set forth herein.

60. Moss Bros. has committed acts of unfair competition, as defined by Business
and Professions Code §17200, ef seq. As set forth more fully herein, Defendant has
engaged In a course of conduct of systematically violating the consumer laws in this
State prohibiting the commitment of deceptive practices, including the laws of fraud
and deceit, and the various prohibitions contained in the Consumers Legal Remedies
Act, Automobile Sales Finance Act, and Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act
set forth in detail herein.

61. Defendant has engaged in an “unlawful” business act and/or practice by:
(1) attempting to cancel the subject RISC based on an alleged failure to obtain financing

after more than 10 days had expired from the date of purchase; (2) threatening to
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repossess the Vehicle; (3) failing to make required disclosures, harassing, lying and/or
violating fair debt collection laws; and (4) failing to comply with DMV regulations
regarding registration and titling.

62. As detailed above; these business acts and practices violated numerous
provisions of both state and federal law, including, but not limited to, the CLRA, the
ASFA, Rosenthal Act, and the FDCPA.

63. The harm to Plaintiff and the members of the Class outweighs the utﬂity of
Defendant’s policies andfor practices, particularly considering the available
alternatives, and that Defendant’s policies and/or practices are immoral, unscrupulous,
unethical, and against public policy. Defendant’s policies and/or practices consequently
constitute an “unfair” business act or practice within the meaning of Business and
Professions Code §17200.

64. Defendant’s deceptive policies and/or practices as set forth above also are
likely to and/or have deceived Plaintiff and the members of the Class. Thus, Defendant
has also engaged in “fraudulent” business practices.

65. Defendant has engaged in and continues to engage in the same form of
deceptive acts and practices.

66. Defendant’s unlawful, unfair, and/or fraudulent business practices present
a continuing threat to Plaintiff and others in that Defendant will continue utilizing
similar policies and practices.

67. Business and Professions Code §17203 provides that Plaintiff is entitled to
an order enjoining Defendant from engaging in acts or practices that viclate Business
and Professions Code §17200, as well as providing for equitable monetary relief so as
to preclude the retention of all ill-gotten monies by Defendant or so as to restore any
monies wrongfully obtained by Defendant to the Plaintiffs. Plaintiff and the members
of the Class have lost money and suffered injury in fact as a result of Defendant’s illegal
conduct. Plaintiffs seek such equitable monetary relief, and an order enjoining

Defendant from engaging in the acts and practices set forth in this Complaint, imposing
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an asset freeze or constructive trust over such monies as the Court deems appropriate,
as well as compelling a corrective informational campaign to correct the misperceptions
in the marketplace created by such conduct.
68. Plaintiff further seeks attorney’s fees and costs under Code of Civil Procedure
§1021.5.
FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Violation of the Consumers Legal Remedies Act - Injunctive and Equifable
Relief Only- No claim for Damages at this time

69. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations in Paragraphs 1 through
68 inclusive, of this Complaint. This cause of action is brought by Plaintiffindividually.

70.  The Sebring constitutes “goods” bought for use primarily for personal, family,
or household purposes pursuant to Civil Code §1761(a).

71.  Plaintiff is a “consumer” pursuant to Civil Code §1.761(d).

72. Moss Bros. is a “person” pursuant to Civil Codé §1761(c).

73. 'The advertisement and sale of the Sebring to Plaintiff is a “transaction”
pursuant to Civil Code §1761(e).

74. Pursuant to the CLRA, the following unfair methods of competition and
unfair or deceptive acts or practices are prohibited: misrepresenting the source,
sponsorship, approval, or certification of goods or services; representing that goods or
services have sponsorship, approval, characteristics, ingredients, uses, benefits, or
quantities which they do not have or that a person has a sponsorship, approval, status,
affiliation, or connection which he or she does not have; representing that goods or
services are of a particular standard, quality, or grade, or that goods are of a particular
style or model, if they are of another; advertising goods or services with intent not to
sell them as advertised; representing that a transaction confers or involves rights,
remedies, or obligations which it does not have or involve, or which are prohibited by
law; and representing that the subject of a transaction has been supplied in accordance

with a previous representation when it has not.
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75. Moss Bros. violated the CLRA by, at a minimum: (1) attempting to cancel

the subject RISC based on an alleged failure to obtain financing after more than 10

days had expired from the date of purchase; (2) failing to comply with DMV regulations
regarding registration and titling; (3) threatening to repossess the vehicle; (4) failing
to make required disclosures, harassing, lying and/or violating fair debt collection laws;
(5) falsely representing that Ms. Gama had to purchase a GAP contract.

76.  Plaintiff served Defendants via certified mail, U.S. Mail, and facsimile a
Consumers Legal Remedies Act notification and demand letter on November 3, 2009.

77.  The Consumers Legal Remedies Act provides that a complaint for violation
of the Consumers Legal Remedies Act may be amended without leave of court to seek
damages should the violations not be remedied within thirty (30) days of notification.
Plaintiff will add a claim for actual and punitive damages, for the oppressive,
fraudulent, or malicious acts of Moss Bros., and statutory damages undér the
Consumers Legal Remedies Act for violation of Civil Code §1770 if a full and complete
response to this letter is not timely received on behalf of Plaintiff. At this time,
equitable and injunctive relief are sought only under this cause of action. No claim for
damages is made under this cause of action at this time.

78.  Civil Code §1780(a){2) of the CLRA provides that a consumer is entitled to
an injunction prohibiting acts or practices which violate it. Plaintiff seeks an order
enjoining Moss Bros. from the acts identified above.

79.  Under Civil Code §§1780(a)(2), (3), and (5), Plaintiff seeks an order from the
Court finding that the RISC between Plaintiff and Moss Bros. is enforceable as written
and cannot be cancelled by Moss Bros. pursuant to its contractual right of rescission,
and that Moss Bros. must comply with the terms of the RISC.

80. Pursuant to Civil Code §1780(d), Plaintiff may also recover attorney’s fees
and costs according to proof at time of trial.
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FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation of the Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection Practices
Act California Civil Code §1788 et seq.

81. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations in Paragraphs 1 through
68 inclusive, of this Complaint. This cause of action is brought by Plaintiff individually.

82. Thiscause ofaction arises out of Moss Bros.’s violations of the Rosenthal Fair
Debt Collection Practices Act, California Civil Code sections 1788-1788.32 (“Rosenthal
Debt Collect Practices Act”) and California Common Law.

83. The Californialegislature has determined that the banking and credit system
and grantors of credit to consumers are dependent upon the collection of just and owing
debts and that unfair or deceptive collection practices undermine the public confidence
that is essential to the continued functioning of the banking and credit system and
sound extensions of credit to consumers. The Legislature has further determined that
there is a need to ensure that debt collectors exercise this responsibility with fairness,
honesty, and due regard for the debtor’s rights and that debt collectors must be
prohibited from engaging in unfair or deceptive acts or practices.

84. The United States Congress has found abundant evidence of the use of
abusive, deceptive, and unfair debt collection practices by many debt collectors, and has
determined that abusive debt collection practices contribute to the number of personal
bankruptcies, to martial instability, to the loss of jobs, and to invasions of individual
privacy. Congress wrote the FDCPA to eliminate abusive debt collection practices by
debt collectors, to insure that those debt collectors who refrain from using abusive debt
collection practices are not competitively disadvantaged, and to promote consistent
State action to protect consumers against debt collection abuses (15 U.S.C. §1692(a)-(e)).
Certain practices prohibited by the FDCPA are incorporated into the Rosenthal Debt
Collect Practices Act through Civil Code §1788.17.

/11
/11
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85.  Moss Bros. and its employees and/or agents, and specifically, it's agent “Sam”
who has called Plaintiff on multiple occasions, were trying to collect on an alleged
financial obligation for primarily personal, family, or household purposes.

86. Moss Bros. and its employees and/or agents engaged in a campaign of
harassment against Plaintiffby, at a minimum: (1) attempting to cancel the RISC more
than 10 days after the purchase of the vehicle which it is not legally entitled to do;
(2) abusing, threatening and harassing Plaintiff verbally; (3) threatening to and/or
attempting to repossess a vehicle when it had no legal right to do so; and (4) making
false, deceptive, or misleading representations to collect the debt.

87. The FDCPA, in 15U.S.C. §§1692c(a) and (b), 1692d(5) and (6), 1692¢, 1692¢
(2), (4), (), (7), (10), and (14), and 1692f(6), and the Rosenthal Debt Collect Practices
Act, in Civil Code §§1788.10(a), (b), and (), 1788.11(d), and (e), 1788.12(d) and (e), and
1788.13(e) and (f) prohibit these practices.

88. Asaresult of violations of the FDCPA, and Rosenthal Debt Collect Practices
Act by Defendant and its employees and/or agents, Plaintiff has suffered out-of-pocket
expenses and is entitled to actual damages pursuant to California Civil Code
§1788.30(a), statutory damages for a knowing or willful viclation pursuant to California
Civil Code §1788.30(b), and reasonable attorney’s fees and costs pursuant to California
Civil Code §1788.30(c) from Moss Bros.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Intentional Misrepresentation — Individual Claim
89. Plaintiff incorporates by reference each and every allegation set forth in
Paragraphs 1 through 88, inclusive, of this Complaint. This cause of action is brought
by Plaintiff individually.
90. At the time of purchase, and afterwards, Defendant made the
misrepresentations as set forth in Paragraphs 30-40. The identity of Defendant’s

employees who made the misrepresentations to Plaintiff are stated in those same
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Paragraphs. Names of Defendant’s employees whom Plaintiff does not know are known
to Defendant and are stated in documents in Defendant’s possession.

91. At the time of purchase, and afterwards, Defendant omitted from the
statements it had made material facts as set forth above, the disclosure of which were
necessary in order to make Defendant’s other statements not misleading. These
omissions include, but are not limited to the following: the contract was enforceable,
and Moss Bros. had no right to cancel the transaction; Plaintiff did not have to purchase
a GAP contract in order to purchase the vehicle.

92. At all times Defendant either had actual or constructive notice of th.e true
facts but nonetheless intentionally or recklessly concealed these facts from
Plaintiff.

93. Defendant made these representations and omitted material facts with the
intent to defraud Plaintiff and induce Plaintiff to purchase the Vehicle. At the time
Plaintiff purchased the vehicle she did not know, or have reason to know, that
Defendant was making false and misleading representations and had omitted material
facts. Plaintiff acted in justifiable reliance upon the truth of the representations which
misled her as to the nature and extent of the facts concealed. Plaintiff was justified in
her reliance as Defendant held itself out as a professional in the automotive sales and
leasing industry and Plaintiff had no reason to doubt its representations.

94.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s fraudulent representations,
omissions of material fact and wrongful conduct, Plaintiff has suffered damages,

including actual, general, consequential, and incidental damages according to proof at

trial.
95. Defendant acted with malice, oppression, and fraud toward Plaintiff within
the meaning of Civil Code Section 3294. In particular, Defendant’s conduct included

misrepresentations by Finance Managers and sales persons, among others, authorized
to act on Defendant’s behalf. Plaintiff is, therefore, entitled to punitive damages.

Iy
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SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Negligent Misrepresentation — Individual Claim

96.  Plaintiff incorporates by reference each and every allegation set forth in
Paragraphs 1 through 95, inclusive, of this Compiaint and further alleges in the
alternative to the Sixth Cause of Action as follows. This cause of action is brought by
Plaintiff individually.

97. Therepresentations made by Defendant as alleged in Paragraphs 30-40 were
not true.

98. Regardless of its actual belief, Defendant made the representations without
any reasonable grounds for believing them to be true.

99. Defendant failed to exercise due care in ascertaining the accuracy of the
representations made to Plaintiff.

100. Defendant made the representations for the purpose of inducing Plaintiff to
rely upon them, and to act, or refrain from acting, in reliance thereon.

101. Plaintiff was unaware of the falsity of the representations and acted in
reliance upon the truth of those representations and was justified in relying upon those
representations.

102. Asadirect and proximate result of Defendant’s negligent misrepresentations
of material fact, Plaintiff has suffered damages, including actual, consequential, and
incidental damages according to proof of trial.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
Breach of Contract - Individual Claim

103. Plaintiff incorporates by reference each and every allegation set forth in
Paragraphs 1 through 102, inclusive, of this Complaint. This cause of action is brought
by Plaintiff individually.

104. Plaintiff entered into a contract with Moss Bros. whereby Moss Bros. agreed
to pay $2,000 to Loanmart on Plaintiff's outstanding lien on her Nissan Altima.

105. Moss Bros. breached the contract by failing to pay Loanmart.
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106. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s material breach of contract,
Plaintiff has suffered damages in an amount to be proven at trial, plus interest at the
legal rate. Plaintiff is also entitled to recover costs and attorney’s fees.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment as follows, on behalf of herself and the
Class, as appropriate for the particular causes of action:

1. An Order certifying the Class under the appropriate provisions of California

law, and appointing Plaintiff and her counsel to represent the Classes.

2, For general, special, actual, and statutory damages according to proof at
trial.
3. For incidental and consequential damages according to proof at trial.

4. For specific performance or a ruling that the RISCS between Ms. Gama and
the Class and Moss Bros. are enforceable.

5. For the equitable, injunctive and monetary relief permitted under Business
& Professions Code §17203.

6. For pre- and post-judgment interest at the legal rate.

7. For a preliminary and permanent injunction and declaratory relief as set
forth in this Complaint.

8. For reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of suit as specified under inter alia,
Code of Civil Procedure §1021.5, Civil Code §§1780(d), 2983.4 and 1788.30(c), 15 U.S.C.
§§1681n(c), 16810(b), and 1692k(a)(3). |

9. For such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper under
the circumstances.

10.  Norequest for damages is made pursuant to the Consumers Legal Remedies
Act at this time.

DATED: November 3, 2009 ROSNER, BARRY & BABBITT, LLP

o (P B

‘Chrigtopher P. Bar
Attorneys for Plajnitiff
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EXHIBIT 2




October 12, 2008

Leticia Gama
1728 W Porter St
San Bernarding, CA 92407

Dear Leticia,

You recently entered inta a motor vehicle contract and security agreement with .
Moss Bros. Dodge for the purchase of a motor vehicle. This confract and agreement
is contingent upon our ability to obtain a financial institution to purchase that contract.

To date, we have been unable to obtain & financial institution willing-to do so.
Pursuant to the terms of the cantractual agreement you signed with Moss Bros Dodge,
this letter is 1o serve as “Notification of Non-assignment of Contract'.

As we continue to work on obtaining financing, if you have any questions please feel
free to contact the Finance Department. We appreciate your business.

1100 South “E” Street » San Bernardino + California « 92408 {908) 834-8255 « Fax {908) 885-8972 » www.mossbrosdodgesh.com

At Moss.. You're The Boss!™
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